
A
G

EN
D

A
 

O
U

TSTA
N

D
IN

G
 

A
C

TIO
N

S
STR

A
TEG

IC
 

M
A

T
TER

S
C

A
SE R

EP
O

R
TS 

FR
O

M
 P

SC

 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES Meeting date: Monday 16 December 2024  

 
IN ATTENDANCE   
Members: 

• Suzanne Vestri (Convener) 

• Ashleigh Dunn  

• Helen Donaldson 

• Lezley Stewart 

• Morag Ferguson 

Executive Team Members: 

• Lorna Johnston (Executive Director) 
 
 

ITEM CONTENT ACTION 

STANDING ITEMS 

1.  APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Richard Wilson, Case Manager. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
  

2.  MATTERS ARISING 
Members noted all matters arising from their last meeting, on 4 November 2024, were complete. 
 

 
 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

3.  DRAFT MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
Members reviewed and approved the minute of the meeting on 4 November 2024.   
 

 
 

4.  RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
Members undertook their annual review of the Risk Management Policy and agreed some minor 
amendments. Members asked the Executive Team to make the changes and publish the revised 
version on the website. 
 

 
Executive 
Team 

5.  RECORDS MANAGEMENT PLAN 
Members noted that the annual progress update review (PUR) of the records management plan 
(RMP) had been submitted to National Records of Scotland on 13 December 2024. Updates had 
been provided in the PUR template, covering the revised Business Continuity Plan and the new 
payroll agreement with CGI. Minor wording changes were made to the paragraph of the RMP 
regarding information sharing with the ESC. It was anticipated that a response would be received 
from National Records of Scotland in approximately three months’ time. 
 
Members noted that, in the meantime, the updated records management plan would be 
published on the Standards Commission’ website. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

STRATEGIC MATTERS 

6.  PROMOTING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS FRAMEWORK AND UPDATE ON OUTREACH WORK 
Members noted the outreach work undertaken since the last meeting. Members noted, in 

particular, that since the last meeting: 

• The Executive Director and Convener appeared before the Local Government, Housing and 

Planning Committee on 19 November 2024. 

• The Executive Director presented on the work of the Standards Commission at the SOLAR 

annual conference on 22 November 2024. 

 



2 
 

• Members held a meeting to discuss the Standards Commission’s work with the Scottish 

Parliamentary Corporate Body on 28 November 2024. 

 

Members further noted that: 

• The Standards Commission has been asked to present on the Councillors’ Code to elected 

members and officers of Argyll & Bute Council at an online session on 9 January 2025. 

 

• The Executive Director has been asked to present on the Model Code to Board Members of 

the Crofting Commission on 26 February 2025. 

 

• The Executive Director and Case Manager are to conduct two further joint webinars, with the 

Improvement Service, for elected members on 16 and 30 January 2025. The webinars are on 

identifying and managing conflicts of interest, and quasi-judicial and regulatory decision-

making, respectively. 

 

• Staff and Members are due to attend a strategy day with the newly appointed public relations 

company on 29 January 2025, which is intended to help shape the focus of outreach and 

promotional work going forward. 

 

• The Standards Commission has been asked to present on the Councillors’ Code to elected 

Members and officers of East Lothian Council in early 2025 (date to be agreed). 

 

7.  DIRECTION ON THE OUTCOME OF INVESTIGATIONS 
Members noted that a direction regarding the outcome of investigations into complaints about 
councillors and members of devolved public bodies (the Outcome Direction) was issued to the 
former Ethical Standards Commissioner (ESC), on 12 November 2020, under section 10 of the 
Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. The Direction was effective from 12 
November 2020. Following consultation and a review by Members, the Direction was renewed 
in November 2022 and January 2023. It was due to expire on 31 January 2025. 
 
Members noted the Outcome Direction required the ESC to provide the Standards Commission, 
at the conclusion of every investigation into a complaint about a councillor or member of a 
devolved public body, with a report outlining the findings and recommendations as to whether 
or not there has been a contravention of the relevant Code of Conduct. The ESC may recommend 
that no breach has occurred, but no longer makes the final decision on such cases, as was the 
case prior to the Outcome Direction being issued.  
 
In deciding, at their meeting on 31 January 2023, to renew the Direction, Members had noted 
that: 

• It ensured there was a clear separation of investigative and adjudicatory functions between 
the Standards Commission and the ESC. This approach ensured any concerns about fairness 
of process or inconsistencies between the two organisations as to how the Codes should be 
interpreted are addressed. 

• It allowed any disputed evidence or representations on how the provisions of the Codes 
should be interpreted to be tested fully at a Hearing, if appropriate, where evidence is taken 
on oath or affirmation, and where the participants and Panel can question and respond to 
submissions made.  

• The Standards Commission publishes both its ‘no action’ and Hearing decisions, meaning that 
information is made publicly accessible on all complaints investigated. This allows those who 
are subject to the Codes, council or public body employees and members of the public to see 
how the Codes are being interpreted and what the threshold for a breach may be.  

• It ensured there was an independent review of all complaints where the ESC had 
recommended that no breach has occurred. This was considered to be of particular 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

importance given there is no right of appeal by a complainer in respect of a ‘no breach’ 
decision by the ESC. 

 
Members noted that the ESC had published an Investigation Manual, which outlined and 
confirmed the process provided for by the Outcome Direction. Members further noted that the 
ESC had confirmed his intention was to continue to report on all cases about councillors and 
members that have been investigated, regardless of whether he has concluded the applicable 
Code has been breached or not. In the circumstances, Members agreed that there was no longer 
a need for the Outcome Direction and that it should be allowed to lapse when it expired on 31 
January 2025. Members asked the Executive Team to advise the ESC, Scottish Parliamentary 
Corporate Body and Local Government Housing and Planning Committee accordingly. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

8.  QUARTER 3 REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN 2024/25 
Members reviewed the progress made in the first three quarters of the year to date, against the 
actions outlined in the Business Plan for 2024/25. Members were pleased to note the majority 
of tasks identified had been completed or progressed. 
 

 
 

9.  REVIEW OF STANDARDS COMMISSION PAPERS 
Members noted the Audit & Risk Committee had undertaken a review of the nature and level of 
detail provided in papers prepared by the Executive Team for consideration by Members at 
meetings of the Standards Commission and its Audit & Risk and Human Resources Committees. 
 
Members noted that, as part of the review, the Committee had sought feedback from the 
Convener and Executive Team. The Committee advised it was satisfied that Members were 
receiving the information they required, with an appropriate level of detail, to enable them to 
fulfil successfully their strategic and scrutiny roles. Members agreed that they considered 
decisions were being made at the right level and that further robust oversight of the governance 
and financial arrangements were provided by the Standards Commission’s committees and its 
internal and external auditors. 
 

 
 

10.  DECEMBER 2024 STANDARDS UPDATE 
Subject to some minor amendments, Members approved the Standards Update to be issued and 
published on 19 December 2024. 
 

 
Executive 
Team 
 

11.  FREQUENCY AND TIMING OF SCS MEETINGS 
Members reviewed the frequency and timing of formal Standards Commission meetings. 
Members agreed they would continue to hold six meetings (of which two would be held in public) 
and four development / training sessions per annum. Members further agreed provisional dates 
for 2025/26 and asked that these be published on the website once finalised. 
 

 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

CASES UPDATE 

12.  REPORTS FROM THE ESC & SECTION 14 LETTERS 
(a) LA/H/3975: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Highland Councillor. 
 
(b) LA/H/4091: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Highland Councillor. 
 

(c) LA/E/4105: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a City of Edinburgh Councillor. 
 

(d) LA/AC/4056: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about an Aberdeen City Councillor. 
 

 



4 
 

(e) LA/Fi/4106: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a Fife Councillor. 

 

(f) LA/WD/4109 & LA/WD/4118: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report 

to a West Dunbartonshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life 

etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 

13.  CASES 
(a) LA/EA/3904: Members noted that East Ayrshire Council had confirmed that it had formally 
considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 11 September 2024. 
 
(b) LA/NL/3978: Members noted that a Hearing was held on 10 December 2024 at the Gartlea 
Community Centre, Airdrie. The Respondent was found to have breached the Code and was 
suspended for two months. 
 
(c) LA/H/3969: Members noted that a Hearing scheduled to take place on 8 October 2024 at the 
Council Headquarters, Inverness had been adjourned as the Standards Commission had directed 
the ESC to undertake further investigation. The outcome of this further investigation was 
awaited. 

 
(d) LA/Mi/4131: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 15 January 2025 
in the Council Chambers, Midlothian House, Dalkeith. 

 

(e) LA/AC/3986: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place online on 4 
February 2025.  

 

(f) LA/AB/3953: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 19 February 
2025 online and in private.  
 

 

14.  INVESTIGATIONS EXCEEDING 3 MONTHS – INTERIM REPORTS 
(a) NB/PIC/4015: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Poverty and Inequality member had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 
 
(b) LA/As/4024: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Aberdeenshire Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(c) LA/E/4105: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a City of Edinburgh Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(d) LA/AB/4081: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Argyll and Bute Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(e) LA/AC/4056: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Aberdeen City Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 
(f) LA/An/4044: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about an Angus Councillor had taken more than three months to 
investigate. 

 

 
 
 
 



5 
 

 

(g) LA/SL/3905: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a South Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than nine 
months to investigate. 

 
(h) NB/CC/3976: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a member of the Crofting Commission had taken more 
than nine months to investigate. 

 

(i) LA/Fi/4101: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a Fife Councillor had taken more than three months to 
investigate. 

 

(j) LA/PK/4067:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Perth and Kinross Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(k) LA/WD/4108:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a West Dunbartonshire Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 

 

(l) LA/NA/4086:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into complaints about a North Ayrshire Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(m) LA/AC/3994:  Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into complaints about an Aberdeen City Councillor had taken more than nine 
months to investigate. 
 

15.  FEEDBACK INCLUDING ANY HEARINGS SURVEY RESPONSES 
Members noted the feedback received from the Respondent following the Hearing on referral 
LA/NL/3979. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

16.  ANY EMERGING RISKS  
None identified. 
 
TIMESCALES FOR AGREEING BUSINESS PLAN 2025/26 
Members noted that the Executive Team would start preparing a draft Business Plan for 2025/26 
for their initial consideration at the January 2025 Standards Commission meeting. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT SCS MEETING 
Members agreed to advise the Executive Director of any items to be included in the agenda for 
discuss at the next meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

17.  2024/25 DIARY DATES AND WORKPLAN 
Members noted the diary dates and ongoing workplan.  
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Members noted that the next meeting of the Standards Commission was scheduled to take place 
online and in public on Monday, 27 January 2025.  
 

 
 
 


